
DALLAS CITY COUNCIL
Tuesday, February 19, 2013

Council Chambers

The Dallas City Council met in regular session on Tuesday, February 19, 2013, at 7:00 p.m. in the 
Council Chambers of City Hall with Mayor Brian Dalton presiding. 

ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Council members present: Council President LaVonne Wilson, Councilor Jim Brown, Councilor 
Jim Fairchild, Councilor Kelly Gabliks, Councilor Beth Jones, Councilor Jackie Lawson, 
Councilor Kevin Marshall, Councilor Murray Stewart, and Councilor Ken Woods, Jr.  

Also present were: City Manager Ron Foggin, City Attorney Theresa Ozias, Fire Chief Bill Hahn, 
City Recorder Emily Gagner, and Recording Secretary Jeremy Teal. 

Mayor Dalton led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

COMMENTS FROM THE AUDIENCE

Mayor Dalton asked the audience members to limit their speeches to five minutes.  

Chelsea Pope, Executive Director of the Dallas Area Chamber of Commerce and Visitor’s Center, 
119 SW Court St, Dallas, Oregon, stated the 56th Annual Community Awards would take place at 
the Readiness Center on February 22, 2013. She commented on the success of the Dallas High 
School wrestlers winning their fourth league title and indicated 19 students were headed to 
Oregon School Activities Association (OSAA) State competitions.

PUBLIC HEARINGS

CONSENT AGENDA  

It was moved by Councilor Gabliks to approve the Consent Agenda as presented.  The motion 
was duly seconded and carried unanimously.

ITEMS REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT AGENDA  

REPORTS OR COMMENTS FROM THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS

Councilor Fairchild commented on the new improvements to the West Valley Hospital and 
handed out information.

It was moved by Councilor Fairchild to rescind his previous motion to bring in a vendor to 
demonstrate the online bill pay process and instead requests a staff report. The motion was duly 
seconded and carried unanimously. 

Councilor Lawson stated the Park and Recreation Board encouraged the public to walk the trail 
and decide which option they preferred. She noted the open house for the trail would be held on 
March 12, 2013, at 5:00 p.m. at the Aquatic Center and a final decision would be brought to 
Council on April 1, 2013.

Councilor Woods reported Mid-Willamette Valley Area Commission of Transportation 
(MWACT) was working on drafts for the projects. He stated the Godsey Road project was in the 
top eight projects. He commented that ODOT would scope the projects and bring back revised 
estimated project costs.

REPORTS FROM CITY MANAGER AND STAFF

JANUARY FINANCIAL REPORT

Mr. Foggin stated the report outlined the cash standing for the City. He explained the utility aging 
graph showed utility bills that were 60 days past due, noting they accounted for 34% of the total. 
He reported the City’s goal was to get that percentage down to 10%

Councilor Jones asked if 34% of the utility bills were overdue. Mr. Foggin confirmed that 34% of 
the total was over 60 days past due. He noted that the Finance Department was working on new 
policies to help lower the percentage of overdue bills. Councilor Gabliks asked if there was a late 
fee applied to the bill. Mr. Foggin noted that the late fee wasn’t enough and there was no deposit 
required for renters. He indicated there was not a distinction between tenants and landlords and 
tenants were skipping out and not paying their utility bills.

OTHER

Mr. Foggin reported the City had been accepted to the Oregon Main Street Network Program.

Mr. Foggin stated that graffiti had been found all over town. He noted that public and private 
property had been vandalized, including County facilities. He commented that the public and 
business owners had been very helpful and quick to respond. He reported that the parks had been 



City Council Meeting
February 19, 2013
Page 2 

vandalized badly and the Parks Department had done an incredible job of clean up very quickly. 
He noted that graffiti encouraged more graffiti and the City was going to do its absolute best to 
catch the perpetrator and end this problem, with the help of the Police Department and Code 
Enforcement. He read the graffiti ordinance and outlined the responsibilities of the property 
owners. He stated there would be an article in the Itemizer Observer regarding the issue.

Councilor Jones asked if the City would offer a reward to help catch the perpetrator. Mr. Foggin 
answered that a reward could be put together. 

Mr. Foggin noted there was no gang affiliation with the graffiti that had been found around Dallas
.

Councilor Brown asked what the consequences would be when the perpetrator was caught. Mr. 
Foggin stated restitution and community service, and if they were caught multiple times it would 
result in jail time. Councilor Woods noted that the Victim Offender Reconciliation Program 
(VORP) taught the kids responsibility and made them remove the graffiti they had done.

Mr. Foggin stated that it was a problem the City wanted to stop quickly.

RESOLUTIONS

FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE

SECOND READING OF ORDINANCE

Ordinance No. 1752 – An ordinance defining chronic nuisance property, establishing the 
procedure and penalties therefore; and declaring an emergency.

A roll call vote was taken and Mayor Dalton declared Ordinance No. 1752 to had PASSED BY A 
UNANIMOUS VOTE with Councilor Jim Brown, Councilor Jim Fairchild, Councilor Kelly 
Gabliks, Councilor Beth Jones, Councilor Jackie Lawson, Councilor Kevin Marshall, Councilor 
Murray Stewart, Council President LaVonne Wilson, and Councilor Ken Woods, Jr. voting YES.

OTHER BUSINESS

Councilor Lawson asked about the clothing recycling bins around town. Mr. Foggin stated that 
Mr. Locke had contacted the owners and the City had them removed due to not acquiring a permit
. Councilor Lawson asked if they were a legitimate company. Mr. Foggin noted that they seemed 
to be.

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 7:53 p.m.

Read and approved this _______ day of _________________________ 2013.

_______________________________________
                                     Mayor

ATTEST:

_________________________________________
City Manager


